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* * % % * *x % * *x * *

(Starting tinme of the hearing: 7:04 p.m)

JUDGE CLARK: Let's go on the record.

Good evening. It is April 16th of 2026, and
the current tinme is 7:04 p.m Now, the
guestion and answer portion of the local public
hearing just ended. |If you had questions about
this certificate of conveni ence and necessity
case, | hope you were able to get answers to

t hose questi ons.

Now is the formal part of the |ocal public
hearing, where the public can offer comments to
the Comm ssion. |I'magoing to ask that unl ess
you're offering coments that you keep yourself
muted, and if you are participating by phone,
you can nute yourself by pressing star 6. Now,
the M ssouri Public Conmm ssion has set aside
this time today for a virtual l|local public
hearing in case nunber, EA-2025-0299, which is
captioned as In the Matter of the Application
of the Enpire District Electric Conpany Doi ng
Busi ness as Liberty for a Certificate of
Conveni ence and Necessity to Support Resource
Advocacy.

My nane is John Cark. |'mthe regul atory
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| aw j udge presiding over this hearing tonight.
Now, the M ssouri Public Service Conm ssion
regul ates the rates charged by i nvestor-owned
utility conpanies in Mssouri to ensure those
rates are just and reasonable. The Conmm ssion
al so regulates the quality of service and the
saf ety of operations of investor-owned
utilities.

Now, the Commi ssion is nmade up of five
comm ssioners: the Chair of the Comm ssion,
Kayl a Hahn and Conm ssi oners Mai da Col enan,

d enn Kol kneyer and John Mtchell. One

comm ssion seat is currently vacant. Now, the
conm ssioners are appoi nted by the governor to
a fixed termand confirnmed by the senate, and
they enploy a staff of engineers, accountants,
attorneys, financial analysts and other
specialists in the field of utility regul ation.

Now, with nme today are Comm ssi oners Mi da
Col eman, d enn Kol kneyer and John Mtchel | .
Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer, would you |ike to nake
any opening remarks?

COW SSI ONER KOLKSMEYER:  Yes, thank you,
Judge. On behalf of Chair Hahn and the ot her

conm ssioners, | want to wel conme everyone here
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to the I ocal public hearing. W have not made
any decisions in this case. The reason why is
because we -- this is the first step, the

| ocal public hearing, to hear fromyou, the
constituents and the ratepayers. W hear from
you first, so we have not taken any evidence;
we have not taken any testinony. W want to
hear fromyou first. So, here again, we want
to here what you have to say about this --
about this case. So, again, welcone.

It's a beautiful evening. You all could
be doing a whole I ot of things besides setting
this local public hearing, but we sure wel cone
you. So, thank you, Judge.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, Conm ssioner
Kol knmeyer. Now, for the coment portion of
this hearing, a court reporter is transcribing
the hearing, and that's so the other
comm ssioners can review this later, and any
comm ssioners who were unable to be present
tonight, can read it and read your comments.

| wll start by asking counsel to enter
their appearances for the record, and | w |
start with the Enpire District Electric Conpany
doi ng business as Liberty. M. Carter, |
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believe you're nmuted. | still cannot hear you.

M5. CARTER  How about -- how about now?

JUDGE CLARK: | can hear you. Thank you

very nuch.

M5. CARTER Diana Carter for the Enpire
District Electric Conpany doi ng busi ness as
Li berty.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. On behal f of
staff of the Conmm ssion?

MR CGRAHAM Hello, this is Paul G aham
And | represent the staff of the M ssouri --
the |l egal counsel staff of the M ssouri Public
Conmi ssi on.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, M. G aham On
behal f of the O fice of Public Counsel?

MS. VANGERPEN. Good eveni ng, Lindsey
VanCer pen on behal f of the OPC

JUDCGE CLARK: |Is there any counsel present
| haven't called?

M5. MERS: Nicole Mers for Renew M ssouri
Is present, thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Ms. Mers, |
shoul d have seen you there. Now, for those who
woul d |li ke to provide coments today, |let ne

see really quick. For those who would like to
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provi de coments today, |I'mgoing to call the
nanmes in the order on a list | received. And
when | call your nanme, |'mgoing to ask that
you unnute yourself, | swear you in and you'll
have -- | will ask you to state and spell your
name for the record, and then you'll have a
chance to offer your comments to the

Comm ssion. After you offer comment to the
Comm ssion, don't immediately nute yourself
agai n, because you nmay -- we -- the

Comm ssioners nmay have questions for you or |
may have questions for you or the attorneys may
have questions for you.

| f the Comm ssioners have questions,

pl ease -- please feel free to ask them at any
time. |f any attorneys have questions, please
get ny attention and I will recognize you and
you w Il be able to ask your questions.

Now, the Comm ssion, as M. Kol kneyer --
or Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer eluded to, won't be
able to answer any questions today; and that's
because they have to remain partial --
inpartial until after the evidence is presented
at any evidentiary hearing. |f you have

guestions about this case that were not
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answered during the question and answer

portion, |I'mgoing to ask you to speak to a
representative of the conpany, the Conm ssion
Staff or the Ofice of the Public Counsel. [|'m
going to also ask that -- that you be polite
whi |l e other people are offering their coments
and not interrupt them Basically, treat

others as you would like to be treated.

Wth that in mnd, I'"'mgoing to call the
first person to testify and et ne know if |
but cher your nane. Cheryl Marcum Ms. Marcum
And, again, if you are participating by phone,
you can press star 6 to unnute.

M5. MARCUM Ckay, hi.

JUDCGE CLARK: Hello, would you raise your
right hand to be sworn?

(Cheryl Marcum sworn.)

JUDCGE CLARK: Wbhuld you state and spel |l
your nane for the record?

M5. MARCUM  Cheryl, Ch-e-r-y-1, Y.,
Marcum Ma-r-c-u-m

JUDGE CLARK: What would you like to tell
the Comm ssion this evening about this case?

M5. MARCUM Thank you for taking public

coments. This is real inportant. Energencies
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demand urgency. Qur earth is rapidly
overheating as we talk right now about buil ding
yet anot her natural gas-fuel ed generation
conbustion unit that omts greenhouse gases
responsi bl e for that overheating. | understand
t hat conmbusting natural gas, prinmarily nethane,
produces fewer greenhouse gases then conbusting
coal or oil; but our climate energy requires us
to stop conmbusting fossil fuels altogether now
In addition, fracking, piping, trucking
nmet hane is lethal to our environnent in nany
ways. Do not build this gas-fired plant.
Met hane is a major driver of climate change
ri ght now, while carbon dioxide remains in the
at nosphere for centuries and renains the
dom nant driver of recent clinmte change,
net hane remains in the atnosphere for about 12
years, but it is far nore powerful at tracking
heat with the gl obal warm ng potential 80 tines
greater than that of carbon dioxide during the
20 years that grade is released into the
at nosphere.
That neans that over its first 20 years in
t he at nosphere, nethane traps 86 tines nore

heat t han car bon di oxi de. Met hane' s short
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i fespan and strong warm ng potential neans
t hat reduci ng nmethane em ssions is one of the
faster and cheapest solutions to i medi ately
slow the rate of global warm ng. |Instead of
bui | ding this proposed 250 negawatt
climat e-destroyi ng nethane gas-firing unit
adj acent to the state |line power station,
capitalize on the existing infrastructure: the
transm ssion lines. Build and support
appropriately-sized state of the art battery
storage, plus solar and/or wnd infrastructure
nearby for em ssions-field -- free fuel that is
free forever. Soneone called it 0-cost fuel,
and it mtigates climte change. Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you for your conmmrents,
Ms. Marcum Camlle Lonbardi-Aive? Camlle
Lonmbardi -Aive? And, again, if you are
participating by phone, press star 6 to unnute.
Pam Sawyer? Pam Sawyer? Laura Ness? |Is there
a Laura Ness present? Brett Johnson? |
believe | see M. Johnson.

MR, JOHNSON: Yeah, | am here.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Johnson, | have an
opportunity to read your witten coments as

wel | .
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MR, JOHNSON: Onh, thank you.

JUDGE CLARK:  Wul d you raise your right
hand to be sworn in?

(Brad Johnson sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: Woul d you state and spel |l
your spell name for the court reporter?

MR, JOHNSON:. It's Brett Johnson,
B-r-e-t-t, J-o0-h-n-s-o0-n.

JUDGE CLARK: And thank you, M. Johnson,
what you would like to tell the Comm ssion this
eveni ng?

MR JOHNSON: | basically had a | ess
el oquent version of what Cheryl just stated in
that nmethane -- the | eakage on net hane pipes
and its potency as a greenhouse gas nakes it a
ri sky choice to use that solar-plus storage is
what | would vote, but also that it would
conply with Mssouri's statew de energy study,
whi ch recommends a No Regrets policy regarding
generation nmechanism as well as inplenenting a
bui | ding efficiency programas the nost cost
effective and best for the environnent
sol uti on.

JUDGE CLARK: Can you say that last part

agai n?
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MR. JOHNSON: Ch, the Mssouri --

M ssouri -- let's see, statew de energy study
recomends pursuing renewabl e energy as part of
its No Regrets policy, in which it doesn't rely
on people believing the science of climte
change, it's also the nost economcally viable
sol uti on.

JUDGE CLARK: kay, thank you very nuch.
Thank you for your comments. Cheryl Johnson?
|s there a Cheryl Johnson present? Amanda
Cal der on- Ki dst on?

M5. CALDERON- KI DSTON:  Yes, sir.

JUDCGE CLARK: Wbul d you raise your right
hand to be sworn?

(Amanda Cal er on- Ki dst on sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: And woul d you state and
spell your nanme for the record?

M5. CALDERON-KIDSTON :  Certainly. M
name i s Amanda Cal deron-Ki dston, spelled
A-ma-n-d-a, Ca-l-d-e-r-o0-n, dash,
K-i-d-s-t-o-n. Thank you for allow ng ne the
opportunity to address you tonight, Judge and
Comm ssion. First of all, I want to express
deep concern and objection to the issuance of

the certificate of conveni ence and necessity.
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My concerns are based in the lack of notice to
our nei ghbors across the state line in Kansas
and to the southwest of the location of this
state |ine powerplant in Cklahoma, including
the sovereign tribal entities that are | ocated
within a 50 mle radius of this proposed plan.
The Peoria tribe and Quapaw tri be both
have designated Treatnent of State status under
the Cean Air Act, and they have not had a
chance to weigh in or to present objection to
this project. Another concern is that our
community here in Joplin has recently been made
aware that a data center will be built and
i npl enented within the next few years in the
track of |land known as the WI dwood Ranch.
believe that increasing the capacity to produce
electricity wll be directly linked to the data
center, whether or not that is confirnmed here
at this hearing or not; but regardl ess, having
the increase in capacity of a natural gas
fuelled-electric facility, as well as a data
center is going to be not just a one punch, but
a one-two punch to the health and wel | - bei ng of
this community and | strongly object to it.

| do not believe we can consciously
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support that project be deenmed convenient or
necessary. Thank you so nuch for your tine
this evening.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you for your conments.
Trudy Edare? |s there Trudy Edare present?

Mar gar et Shepard? And | apologize if I'm

but chering your nanme. Margaret Shepard?

Robert Meyer? |Is there a Robert Meyer present?
Again, if you participating by phone, press
star 6 to unnute. Ted Butts? |Is there a Ted
Butts present? Steven Dorsey? |s there a

St even Dorsey present? And a Tim Enedley? 1Is
there Tim Enedl ey present?

Ckay, those are the nanes that | had
signed up in advance to give testinony or to
offer coments at this hearing. | wll try and
circle back at the end to see if any of those
people are here. At this tine, I'mgoing to
open it to anybody who did not sign up that
realize now that they would like to offer
coments to the Conmm ssion about this case. |Is
there anybody would like to offer comments to

the Comm ssion. You may do so just unnute

yourself and I wll -- 1 wll call on the first
person that | amable to see. GCkay, |'m going
(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
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to open one nore tinme. |s there anybody el se
who would Iike to offer comments to the
Comm ssion at this tinme about this case? Ckay,
| hear none. |'magoing to go through the nanes
of people that | did not hear from one nore
time, and | believe that would be Camlle
Lonmbardi -Aive? Pam Sawyer? Laura Ness? |Is
there a Laura Ness present? Cheryl Johnson?
Trudy Edare? WMargaret Shepherd? | see your
hand rai sed froma Laura. Laura are you
wanting to -- if you can unnute yourself, are
you wanting to offer coments to the
Comm ssi on?

MR SNIDER Yes, this is actually Laura's
husband, Derek Sni der.

JUDGE CLARK: Derek Snider. D d you want
to offers coments tonight?

MR SNIDER | woul d.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay, would you raise your
right hand to be sworn?

(Derek Snider sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: Woul d you state and spel |l
your name for the court reporter, and then you
may of fer your comments?

MR. SNIDER: Derek Snider, D e-r-e-Kk,
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S-n-i-d-e-r.

JUDGE CLARK: And go ahead, M. Snider.

MR. SNIDER  Yes, ny conmments are that
|'ve learned that this proposed expansion is
going to be southeast of the current retention
pond at the State Line power plant, which would
actually place it, based off what |'ve seen on
the map, as close to the residenti al
subdi vi sion that exists out here as it possibly
could on the existing boundary property for
Li berty. Wy would they plan to expand their
exi sting power plant and place it as close to
the residential subdivision as they coul d?

That seens to ne to be the opposite of what
they should try to do if they want to provide
power but reduce any nui sance to surroundi ng
areas and surroundi ng conmuni ti es.

JUDCGE CLARK: Did you have any ot her
comments you wanted to offer?

MR SNIDER: No, | think that's it. |
think's that's probably nost of our concern out
here is, again, noise froman additional
turbi ne, shouldn't be any closer to residential
nei ghbor hoods then where the current state

power plant is. Certainly not any closer than
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t he past one.

JUDGE CLARK: We received witten coments
about the proximty to residential areas. |
saw -- thank you for your comments, M. Snyder.
| saw one other -- Randall? Randall, did you
wi sh to nmake comments to the Conm ssion this
evening? | saw himgo up nonentarily. | wll
conti nue down the list now of people |I called
t hrough once. Robert Myer? |Is there a Robert
Myer present? Ted Butts? |Is there a Ted Butts

present? Steven Dorsey? |s there a Steven

Dorsey present? Kent Houston? | nmay have
m ssed that one the first tine. |s there a
Kent Houston present? I'msorry. |Is there a

Kent Houston?

MR. BARKER  That m ght have been ne. |I'm
off nmute, or I didn't know how to do this.
Randal | .

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay, what's your |ast nane,
Randal | ?

MR. BARKER  Barker.

JUDGE CLARK: (Ckay, and would you raise
your right hand to be sworn?

(Randal | Bar ker sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: Woul d you state and spel |l
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your name for the court reporter?

MR BARKER: R-a-n-d-a-1-1, B-a-r-k-e-r,
and | submtted sonme comments toni ght over the
phone and just now while | was trying to get
this figured out, because | never got signed
up. Anyway, so, this is about the 250
gigawatt, right, because there's nmany issues
that |'ve addressed.

JUDGE CLARK: That's correct. This is
about the natural gas turbine generator.

MR BARKER Yes. |I'mtotally opposed to
it, and | know that nei ghborhood, and ny aunt
Is there. Lives right by the power plant that
Is existing now, and ny uncle was there until
he passed. It is loud already with the one
that's there. |1've been there when he was
passing and visiting at their house before.
And | can't imagi ne what the other one is |like
alone as a little bit of where the people are
tal ki ng about the data center, which |I've been
followng up and is ny next, you know, m ssion.
So, | feel that with Liberty's -- they can't
get their house in order now, | don't know why
they woul d ever be allowed to add 250 gi gawatts

of anyt hing anywhere and many ot her things
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they're trying right now

They just -- they're doing harmto this --
nmy area that | represent as an advocate and all
across M ssouri as we all know t hrough the PSC
and OPC. | followed every neeting they have
and went to all of those town halls, all of it.

So, they're very detrinental to the elderly and

the less fortunate and financially -- people,
I ncl udi ng busi nesses and hones. It's not --
iIt's not any nore -- |ike what school district

is the property | mght want to buy or the
business | want to start. It is what electric
conpany is it? They want away from Li berty,
and they wll not buy or purchase that hone or
rent because it's Liberty, and they're out of
the price range so far now besides this.

| don't know the answer if they're wanting
to -- this is going to be charged to us also in
addition to the Asbury thing, which is a
problem is a problemand still an ongoi ng
problem And all this is in ny coments and
nmore. | just don't know how can you all ow --
nean, they are literally stealing from people,
solar, straight electric out of their AM

neters, and the Asbury plant was a fraud, |et
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al one adding in this 250 gigawatts and nany
ot her things that they have in the works that
| ve been foll ow ng.

|'"ve been lied to by M. WI son,
Chri st opher Huskilson, the CEO is from Canada
and is Mssouri going to just sell ourselves
out to the Canada and Chi na and CGermany? |
mean, we need off this train, and this nonopoly
needs to be broke from Liberty. They' re doing
maj or harmto our society, our citizens, our
busi nesses and everything around us, including
al so the potential of all the -- all the toxic
runoff, especially if there was to be a data
center there, too. |In addition, they're to
have -- besides adding nore than the 250
gigawatt. | think that's kind of it. | don't
know. | have a lot nore to say, |'msure, |
could go on and on for forever.

JUDGE CLARK: Well, M. Barker, the
Comm ssi on appreciates your comments. Thank
you.

MR. BARKER  Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: |Is there a Tim Enedl ey
present? |s there anybody el se who would Ii ke

to offer cooments at this tine?
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MR, STORRIE: Judge?
JUDGE CLARK: Yes?

MR, STORRIE: M nane is Cheryl -- excuse
nme.

JUDGE CLARK: Sorry, go ahead.

MR STORRIE: M nane is Harold Storrie,
got it. Ha-r-o-1-d, St-o-r-r-i-e. | livein

Joplin and | thought we --

JUDGE CLARK: Ms. Storrie (sic), can you
hold on just a second. Wuld you raise your
right hand to be sworn?

(Harold Storrie sworn.)

JUDCGE CLARK: Pl ease go ahead.

MR STORRIE: | thought that the data
center could be approved had to provide its own
energy source. AmI| wong about that?

JUDGE CLARK: As | indicated earlier, and
| apol ogi ze, but the Conm ssion can't answer
guestions at this tine. That's what the
guestion and answer portion of the hearing is
from-- is for. W can't answer those
guesti ons because the comm ssioners and nysel f
have to remain inpartial until after any
evidentiary hearing, so | apologize. | can't

answer your question, Ms. Storrie. D d you
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have any other comments that you wanted to
of fer the Conm ssion?

MR, STORRIE: No, thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you for your comments,
and | saw one other individual. 1Is there
anyone el se who would like to offer coments to
the Comm ssion at this tine?

MS. LOCKHART:  Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Wuld you -- would
you pl ease state and spell your nanes.

M5. LOCKHART: Lisa Lockhart, L-i-s-a,
L-o-c-k-h-a-r-t.

JUDCGE CLARK: And woul d you raise your
right hand to be sworn?

(Li sa Lockhart sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease go ahead.

M5. LOCKHART: Ckay, | just wanted to
state ny opinion that |I'magainst this
addition, and | think the nethane gas is a real
probl em that we should not allow ourselves to
do this to the earth, and that's -- |I'm
opposed.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay, thank you,

Ms. Lockhart. The Conm ssi on appreciates your

coments this evening.
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MS. LOCKHART: Okay.
JUDGE CLARK: Is there anyone el se that
would i ke to conmment at this tine?

M5. M TCHELL: Susan M tchell.

JUDGE CLARK:  |'msorry?
M5. M TCHELL: Susan Mtchell.
JUDGE CLARK: Susan Mtchell. Wuld you

spel |l your nane?

M5. M TCHELL: Yes. S-u-s-a-n,
Mi-t-c-h-e-1-1.

JUDGE CLARK: And woul d you raise your
right hand to be sworn.

(Susan Mtchell sworn.)

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease go ahead.

M5. MTCHELL: Ckay, I'min the area, but
| don't believe, really believe, that that
should be in all of this residential, anobngst
all the residential that we have in the area.
| don't know any |arge plants that have, you
know, that size in residential. So, that's
what concerns ne: the air pollution, the noise
pollution with all the residents around. |'m
just kind of -- | kind of think that a | ot, you
know, with them needing that increase, is for

the Bitcoin mning that's in area, and they're
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advertising for nore to cone in. | think
that's why they want it, but I don't know that
for sure. And, you know, I don't -- we haven't
had any power outages. |'monly, you know,

maybe a mle fromthe plant. There's not been

power outages. | haven't seen that we need
anything -- need any nore, and we produce sol ar
here at our house. So -- and there's a |ot of
custonmers with solar. So, | don't know why

they continue, you know, to need nore and nore
i nfrastructure, you know, unless it's mainly
for the data centers trying to cone in the
area. O nmaybe Liberty needs to | ook at their
budget 1i ke, you know, the people, the citizens
have to have a budget. W all have a budget.
It's hard to stick with that budget when
you continue to get rate hi kes from your
utility conpanies. So, | strictly oppose it.
| don't like the rate hike that they're doing
to people, and we don't need that in this area.
There's people right across the street.
There's people, you know, within a bl ock of
that plant that -- well, maybe not a bl ock
about three blocks. But | just don't think the

noi se needs to be there or the pollution. And
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they need to figure out howto work off of the
nmoney they received fromthe people, not

conti nuously get nore and nore and nore because
we don't get to do that as citizens. As we
need it, we don't go out and ask, you know, for
nore and nore and nore and charge it. They
just continue to get nore than what they
deserve and what they're putting out. So, no,

| don't want it, and | don't think the

nei ghbors do. That's all | have to say, thank
you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Ms. Mtchell. Is
there anybody el se who would |ike to coment at
this time? | hear none. |1'd like to -- would
any comm ssioners |like to make any closing --
well, I"msorry. Comm ssioner Col eman, would
you |li ke to make closing remarks?

COVMM SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Yes, thank you
Judge. [1'd like to thank each and every person
that has shown up online to participate in the
testinony that it's so crucial for we
comm ssioners to hear in order to nake
deci sions regardi ng the cases that cone before
us. | thank you, and | appreciate the fact you

are here on a very nice evening, as
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Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer nentioned. It's
inportant to us to get input, and it's

I nportant to know that these issues are real to
the people that are affected by it. So, again,
t hank you very nuch for your input. |If you
did -- if you had a question, such as

M. Storrie and wasn't able to, of course, get
It answered in this portion of tonight's event,
pl ease reach out to the Public Service

Comm ssion or to the conpany if you have
guestions and want to get those clarified.
Thank you and thank you, Judge.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, Conm ssioner
Coleman. | would also |like to thank our all
our participants today who of fered conments.
| f you have additional questions, or sonmeone
you are talking to or know couldn't be present
tonight and would like to offer comments,
written comments can be nmade by contacting the
e-mai | address, pscinfo@sc.np.gov. That's
psci nfo@sc. no.gov. By contacting the Ofice
of the Public Counsel, who have been very
graci ous about getting conmments to the
Comm ssion or going to the PSC s web page,

which is ww. psc.nb.gov. At this tinme, |I'm
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going to adjourn this hearing, and we will off
t he record.
(Ending tine of the hearing: 07:38 p.m)
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|, Colin Wallis, in and for the State of
M ssouri do hereby certify that the w tness
whose testinony appears in the foregoing
Exam nati on Under QGath was duly sworn by ne;
that the testinony of the said wtness was
taken by nme to the best of ny ability and
thereafter reduced to typewiting under ny
direction; that I amneither counsel for,
related to, nor enployed by any of the parties
to the action in which this exam nation was
taken, and further that | amnot relative or
enpl oyee of any attorney or counsel enployed by
the parties thereto, nor financially or
otherwi se interested in the outcone of the
action.

ANRY

within and for the State of M ssouri
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